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PROCEEDINGS
" CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioners, we'll now adjust our
schedule to give the court reporter a break and give everybody
lan opportunity to get settled in because our next issue will be
|[Item 3. And staff has a sign-up sheet and they're trying to
work on that. And I want to let everyone kind of get their
"places.
By the way, those of you that are wishing to speak,
"what we're going to do is we're going to have a place set up to
my immediate right. We'll have one microphone for you there
"because it works better for us. It works better for the court
reporter so that she can hear you clearly. And then we're
"going to, we're going to do that. And I'll get back with you
later on in terms of how we're going to structure this, but
|staff now has a list out.
| Commissioners, we're on recess until 30.
ﬂ (Recess taken.)
1 First of all, we're going to, as I said, 1is that
||we're going to have this microphone to my, to my right over
here. And that works for us -- we've had some dissonance in
the system before, but this allows the court reporter to be
lable to hear you by using this microphone here, and it works
for us as well.

And the way we're going to go, Commissioners, my

Wrecommendation is that first we'll have staff to introduce the
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issue. And then I'm going to recognize Commissioner Argenziano
and then we'll proceed from there, Commissioners, anything
further, if any of the Commissioners would like to say
something, then we'll go with taking some comments. And I've
got an order, I've got the list of people so far that have
asked to speak, and I would like to go and I've got an order,
I'd like to go from there and I'll share that with you after
Commissioner Argenziano has completed.

With that, staff, you are recognized.

MR. FUTRELL: Good morning, Commissioners. I'm Mark
Futrell with the Commission staff. Before I introduce the
item, I'd like to note a modification to the item that I
believe you received on Friday. It's a correction to a table
on Page 17 of the recommendation correcting a math error and
then noting those changes as they are noted subsequently in the
text following the table.

To introduce the item, Item 3 is staff's
recommendation to propose rules to establish a Renewable
|Portfolio Standard or RPS for the purpose of going to hearing.
We are recommending three rules: First, the first establishes
the RPS requirements for the investor-owned utilities as well
as the implementation, review and reporting obligations. The
second rule addresses creation of a renewable energy credit
market. The last rule requires the municipal electric

utilities and rural electric cooperatives to file annual

|
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information on the standards they establish to promote

renewables and data on renewables.

In House Bill 7135, the 2008 Legislature directed the
Commission to submit a draft RPS rule by February 1lst, 2009,
for consideration. In order to meet this deadline, the staff
issued a strawman draft rule on August 13th to generate
discussion at public workshops held August 20th and
August 26th, which included nearly 30 participants.

Staff revised its strawman draft rule based on
discussion at the workshops and the written comments received.
Staff has also explained in the recommendation why we agree or
disagree with participants on certain points.

In Section 366.92 of the Florida Statutes the
Legislature expresses their intent that the RPS rule protect
existing and encourage new renewable resources, diversify the
types of fuel used for electric generation, improve
environmental conditions and minimize costs to ratepayers. The
draft rules before you are staff's effort to balance the intent
expressed by the Legislature.

In draft Rule 25-17.400 staff is recommending initial
reasonably achievable renewable standards. These standards
begin with our estimate that renewables currently provide
approximately 3.6 percent of energy needs at this time. Over
time staff's recommended standards would approximately double

the contribution of renewables every eight years.
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The Commission will receive additional information
from Navigant Consulting at the end of November on existing as
well as projected contributions from renewables. This
information will give us a better feel for the reasonableness
of these initial standards prior to submitting a final draft
rule to the Legislature.

This rule would also establish a process for the
Commission to review the performance of the utilities and the
development of the renewable market at least every five years.
"This process would also provide information for the Commission
to adjust the standards, if necessary, based on actual
experience.

As permitted by the statute, the draft rule provides
ladditional encouragement for solar and wind in that at least
25 percent of the RPS must be from these resources and that
75 percent of the revenues available for the RPS be directed to
“solar and wind.

Based on the entirety of Section 366.92, staff has
ltaken a broad view of the renewable resources to be included in

the RPS to include not just resources that directly generate

Ielectricity but those that create thermal energy as well.
Compliance with the RPS would be accomplished through
“the use of renewable energy credits or RECs which provide a
common means of verifying and tracking the production of

renewable energy. A REC is a financial instrument that
1]
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represents the renewable attributes associated with 1 megawatt
hour or 1,000 kilowatt hours of renewable energy. The purchase
and sale of RECs through short-term and long-term contracts
will produce an additional revenue stream for renewable owners
and developers to meet the economic development directives of
the Legislature.

The rule addresses the legislative direction to
provide incentives by allowing the IOUs to recover the cost of
RECs purchased and the cost of self-built renewable projects
through a cost recovery clause and earn a return on their
renewable investments. Also staff has included provisions for
the assessment of penalties as a means of ensuring compliance
with the RPS.

Staff has addressed the Legislature's intent to
minimize costs to ratepayers by including a cost cap. The IOUs
would be allowed to spend 2 percent of retail revenues above
what they would have otherwise paid for capacity and energy for
compliance with the RPS. As an example, in 2007, 2 percent of
the IOUs' retail revenues were approximately $370 million.
Again, this would represent the amount of additional funding
above costs otherwise paid for capacity and energy available to
renewable owners and developers.

Finally for this rule, this rule requires the IOUs to
file annual reports to allow the Commission to monitor the

development of renewables in the state, track costs and monitor
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the IOUs' progress toward meéting the RPS requirements.

Draft Rule 25-17.410 would set forth the processes
for the establishment of the renewable energy credit market.
The IOUs would be required to select and obtain Commission
approval of a third party administrator. The structure and
governance of the REC market would also be subject to
Commission review and approval. The market, once established,
would allow for the certification of RECs from in-state
ll renewable resources and facilitate the ability of renewable
owners and utilities to buy and sell RECs either through
bilateral contracts or a spot market.

The rule identifies the renewable facilities eligible
to produce and sell RECs in the Florida market as directed by
the Legislature. These include utility-owned renewables,
nonutility-owned renewables that sell capacity or energy to a
utility, facilities that meet all or a portion of their needs
from renewables, and customer-owned renewables that have not
received a conservation program incentive from an

investor-owned utility.

Finally, Rule 25-17.420 would require the municipal

Wand cooperative utilities to file reports on the standards they
Westablish to encourage renewables as well as data on the

|development of renewables in their respective service
territories. These data and information coupled with the

hrequirements of the I0OUs will allow the Commission to monitor
I

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

W

the development of renewables from a complete statewide
perspective.

That concludes my summary of the draft rules, and now
let me speak to some procedural matters. Commissioners, our
recommendation before you today is to propose rules. A
December 3rd hearing date has been set aside for the
Commissioners and parties to further discuss the rule that you
propose. At this hearing the Commission will also review the
results of Navigant's technical and economic potential study.
Following that hearing, a January 9th Special Agenda has been
reserved for the Commission to adopt rules.

That concludes my opening remarks. Staff is
available for questions. And as you mentioned, Chairman,
several parties are here to address you today.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. Commissioner
Argenziano, you're recognized.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Thank you, staff. I'm just going to ask for your indulgence
just for a few minutes. I know there's a lot of people who
want to speak, but I want to say a few things.

And, number one, I want to thank staff because staff
has been taking a beating by a lot of people, the media, some
of you sitting out there, and with all -- everybody has their
own opinion and their own great ideas of what we need to move

forward with, but staff is charged with recommendations
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according to the House Bill that passed, the legislative bill
“that passed. And what they did -- and there are not a great
deal of specifics in some of those areas in that, in that bill,
lland staff does, as they have been doing, I guess, since time
began, is, is make those recommendations. And I don't know how
suddenly that translated into that was the decision. Staff
brings forward to this Commission -- it is us who are
lultimately charged with making a decision. So I, I appreciate
the hard work and I know how pulling -- because you've been
pulled from many, many different places and, trust me, that
"does occur. There are so many important issues that we're
dealing with. This is such an important agenda for the State
of Florida. And I do appreciate the hard work you put into
this. So for all the beating that you've taken in the past
week or two, I apologize for that. It really isn't
“appropriate. You did the job that you were, you were charged
llto do. Now do I agree with all of it? Probably not. Does

Ianybody agree? Probably not. But thank you for the hard work

and I wanted to say that publicly.
I
The second thing, Mr. Chairman, that I wanted to

Iemphasize, and we all know this but I want to, I want to get it
llon record because I want people to sit down and really think of
this. You have the legislative branch, the policymakers, we

are not the policymakers, they are, saying we're going to move

Il . . .
forward with, with renewables, we have emphasis on, on

'1
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renewable energy in the State of Florida. And, of course, our

1

Governor has made it very clear where he wants the state to go.
And look at, look at the bigger picture. And please, again,

indulge me. We're talking about many different facets. It's

not just energy that we're really talking about. It's why

we're doing what we're doing. Why not only the people of the
State of Florida need to have a sustainable source of energy
1for the future, whether we're growing at the same rate or not

doesn't matter anymore, we're still growing, there's still more

people coming into the State of Florida, and we have to make

Wsure we plan appropriately. That's what we're charged with.
wAnd we need to make sure that the people of Florida in the
future when they turn on that switch or need that electric have
it.

We also need to make sure that we're talking about
environmental changes, a very large concern. Some people don't
believe, don't believe -- whatever you want to believe, it's
out there. The scientific community is saying, hey, you may
Whave only a certain amount of time to turn things around as far
as cleaning the planet you live on, and, and that's a very big
consideration for many people, including myself.

And you have right now before us not only that, you
have reduce the dependence on fossil fuels. That's, everybody
knows that we need to do that. And, quite frankly, and I'm

going to be very blunt, as I always have, in 1972 when I was
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lwaiting on those gas lines way back then, we knew that back
then. So if in 1972 our political leaders wouldn't have been
so wishy-washy at that time, maybe we would have already moved
forward and reduced our reliance upon fossil fuels. So we
Tcan't be playing these games anymore of just wishy-washy, and I
think that's the mandate you've gotten from the Legislature and
Ialso from the Governor. As we all know, something has to be
1done. Now how you get there, of course, we all have different
opinions on. So let's, let's look at -- you're talking about
Lcleaning the air, reducing emissions, reducing our dependence
Ion fossil fuels, creating a new way to get there, creating

|| renewables, giving the incentives, the economic development
Hinvolved in that because you have to, you have to have a carrot
Lwith that stick because sometimes things just won't move. So
Llthere's many different ways of getting there.

But then you also have to look at the cost and

—————————

Wavailability, and I think that's what staff had all those

factors put in there and said, okay, the cost. Because,

believe it or not, we're hearing from legislators who are
hearing from their constituents who are saying that, you know,

Wwe can't take bigger hits. Okay? But yet you have other

e ——————————————

Tfactors to look at. Will, you know, will there be a time when
you can't turn around the damage that you may be doing to the,
to the environment? There may be a point. And at that point

does rate, do rates, are rates really going to be a higher

1
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llconsideration than saving your planet? And that is a
legitimate question that's out there. So taking all those
things together, again, I want to thank staff for coming up
with something that you're being pulled in 12 or 13 different
places, as we are also.

Now what I think, what I would like to propose before
anybody gets up and speaks, and maybe you have time to think
about this and I'd like to ask my Commissioners to think about
this, I would like to see, since we are charged with a draft
rule by February, I would like to see two versions of a draft
H
rule. And the reason I want to do that is because, as I said
before, some of these issues that have not been very specific
in House Bill 7135 are policy issues. And I think that the
ILegislature, given certain pieces of information plugged into
lour rule and given certain pieces of information that are going
Wto come down the pike, are truly the only people who can make
the call on those policy issues.

So if we have one rule that I think is going to

differ from staff's rule that says we're going to move forward
very aggressively, we're going to do the 2020 date, we're going
Lto, we're going to reduce those emissions and we have to attach
costs and other items as best as we can get because they're
“sometimes hard to get today, but also knowing that we're right

on the cusp of many breakthroughs on solar efficiency, so many

different renewable breakthroughs that we cannot afford to stop

% FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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providing an incentive for that type of development to
continue. Because that's what happened in '72 when everybody
came out with, hey, we can do it this way, and then all of the
sudden, no money, no incentive was there and that died away and
we just relied on the same old same old, which got us in this
position now.

So I would like to see, one, a recommendation or a
rule, a draft rule, one that says it's going to be much more
aggressive than what we have in front of us. Let's get to
where we need to go, but also plug in as best as we can the
information for those policymakers to make a determination on
what, on what they ultimately decide: Will the rate, this much
rate be too much on the people today or would it be acceptable
or is there something else we could do to reduce the rates?

But give them all that information in an aggressive approach to
getting where we need to go.

And using some of the data that we have from around
the country, other states like California, how is, how is their
plan working, what are their pitfalls, what can we do to avoid
those? And maybe in the second draft, and I'm proposing two
draft rules, the second draft maybe be a little bit closer to
what staff is recommending that is, is looking at the
legislation that passed and saying, okay, we're going to, we're
going to take a more conservative approach than Plan A, which I

say we need to move aggressive on, but not quite as

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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conservative as the staff has, has come up with. So in doing

that, of course, Mr. Chairman, there has to be certain things

that need to be plugged in there because the Legislature needs
to have additional information.

And I guess my point is that some of those pieces
that are missing here -- we're not the policymakers. We'd be,
"we'd be making a call here on some of that of making policy,
but let's give them the rule that they need for those two
scenarios. Because, quite frankly, what I see coming down in
l|the legislative session is going to be a lot different, well,
maybe not a lot different, but it can be changed, it's going to
change. I don't think that your rule would fly through and I
"just don't see that happening, so I see changes taking place
anyway. But let's give them the information that they need but
|also do what we're mandated to do, and that is to simply create
the rule. But if you don't have the specifics and you find
"that you're down the road and the Legislature is saying -- as I
said, I'm hearing, I'm sure you are too, from Representatives
Iand Senators who are saying, hey, you know, we have enough, our
consumers are screaming and the rates are something you need to
|ltake into consideration. So let's give it to them to make that
determination. Show them where the aggressive approach is
llprobably something that we need to move forward with, but here

are the numbers and here's how we look at it, now you help us

"to get there, but we give them the rules.
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And in a nutshell, I mean, I can be more specific at
a later date because we don't have certain numbers right now.
It's a little hard to find some of those numbers out there
right now. It's a little hard to determine what's going to
happen in five years. But we can't stifle what's going to
happen. We can't say we'll throw it out and, you know, we'll
|just, we're just not going to give them the incentive. We need
to give those renewable companies some assurances that the
State of Florida means business and we're going to move forward
and let them know they have an insurance policy. We're going
to put some money where our mouth is.
| So, Mr. Chairman, that's my suggestion. And I really
am looking forward to hearing what everybody has to say. But I
think that we need to be considering a more aggressive approach
also and send it to the Legislature as proposed Rules A and B.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner, for your

1 .
wisdom.

Commissioners, anything further? We'll go ahead with
our comments. Obviously at any point in time any Commissioner
that wants to be heard will be recognized for that. And
anything further, Commissioners-?

Hearing none, let's do this. I've got my own little
mind-set in terms of how -- what I'd like to do is to kind of

group, have -- we've got this microphone over here and I'm

| .
going to ask you, those of you that come up to speak, to be
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respectful. We want to hear from everyone. And I know your
issue is the greatest issue on the planet, but if you'd be
succinct in your issue because the critical thing, as
Commissioner Argenziano has said, is that we've got to hear, we
want to hear from you, but we've got to make some critical
decisions. And if you always do what you've always done,
you'll always get what you've always gotten, and we can't do
that anymore. So, please, ma'am, please, sir, be respectful as
you come up.

First -- and I'm going to ask you when you come up,
if you could limit your comments to five minutes or less. And
that would be very helpful because that will allow us to hear
what you have to say and that will allow us as Commissioners to
have some give and take. We may ask you a question or we may,
I something happens later on, we may want to bring you back up to
ask you that. But that will allow us to have a full and
forthright discussion, debate and come to a resolution of this
Hvery significant issue that's not about scoring points. It's

I

TFlorida particularly at this point in time. And with that,

about doing what's in the best interest for the people of

first up will be Mr. Mike Twomey.

MR. TWOMEY: Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, good
morning. Mike Twomey. I'm appearing on behalf of AARP, which
has over three million members in the State of Florida. I

always mention that because it's important, and I think it's
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especially important today because along with Public Counsel

"and perhaps some of the industrial customers that might be here

and appear today, I'm one of the few people that represent

customers who are expected to pay the bills that will,

increased bills that will result from presumably any decision
you make in this matter today.

I The -- it's important because if everybody doesn't

know outside this room, the utilities will not pay for these

increased costs. The costs are going to go to the customers

and it's going to increase their bills, and you've seen it on

Il
the table.

It's particularly important that we just observe
Wbriefly that, that a lot of people are suffering from mortgage

foreclosures, gas costs, there's insurance costs, there's

increased unemployment, there's cost of, increased cost of
Wevery nature that people are trying to deal with. AARP
contacts told me yesterday they're getting calls from people in
htheir 70s who have seen 20, 25, 30 percent or more of their
Wretirement funds disappear. So it wasn't necessarily a good
“time for a lot of people on fixed incomes and low incomes to
have to face increased electric bills two, three, four months
ago. It's even a worse situation for having to do it now.

“ Now as far as the, the proposed rule, AARP has been
saying since the legislative session last year that we wanted

to see elected officials make the ultimate decisions. And
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that's going to happen, as pointed out by Commissioner
Argenziano, when it goes back to the Legislature next session.
We said we wanted to see a budget. Families have to operate
with budgets. There should be a budget, there should be a
ceiling cap, a cost cap on these expenditures. And your staff
has recommended such a cap and we agree with the staff that
there has to be a cost cap. It is essential there has to be a
budget.

We disagree to the extent that we oppose staff's
recommendation of 2 percent of the company's previous year's
revenues and we agree with the Office of Public Counsel that it
should be 1 percent, which is not, by the way, an insignificant
number. It's -- 1 percent would be something in excess of
$185 million a year in rate increases for the customers of the
|five IOU utilities.

We said at the Legislature and I've said here before
for AARP we want to see the most cost-effective achievement of
whatever your goals are. We want to see the most renewable or
clean energy attained for these consumers for the money that's
going to be spent. And as a consequence, we said at the
Legislature, I've said it here before that we are opposed to
carve-outs for any technology. And I want to be clear that I'm
speaking for AARP and not its various members, and I want to be
clear as well that AARP doesn't have a policy on wind or solar

or nuclear for that matter. By opposing a solar and wind
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lcarve-out we're not in opposition to wind or solar. We're
taking a position that we want to get, again, the most energy,
the biggest bang for the buck, take the low hanging fruit and
all those type things, and we believe and have said from the
beginning that special treatments in the nature of carve-outs
is wrong for any technology, solar and wind included. As you
"heard from your staff, 25 percent of the energy but 75 percent
of the money under this carve-out would be directed towards
solar irrespective of whether there were other renewables,
"other clean technologies that were available at a lower cost.
There should be RFPs by these utilities, an essentially reverse
auction that gets us the most energy for the least cost.

] The, we don't have a position on when you should
achieve 20 percent. By and large if we have a cost cap, that
issue is somewhat irrelevant in terms of protecting consumers.
"And, again, the cost cap is essential.

The -- I want to speak briefly. I want to be very
lcareful and tread lightly here to a suggestion by FP&L that new
nuclear should be counted as, as clean. I don't think the law
llas written allows that. But this whole rule process is going
back to the Legislature, as y'all recognize, and I would
[lsuggest to you that you may want to consider recommending to
the Legislature that they consider modifying the RPS to a clean
"portfolio standard. I think Florida Power & Light makes a

strong argument that the nuclear generation which is largely
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ﬂemission—free should be counted. And I'm saying that again not
Wbecause the AARP has a nuclear policy, because it does not. It

Wdid not participate, as you'll recall, in the need

determination proceedings for the new Turkey Point units or the
Levy County units, not in favor nor in opposition. But I've
said to you, I've tried to say that AARP would like to see the
best deal economically for the cards that we've been dealt to
date. And some of the cards we've been dealt so far is the
fact that you have approved those four units for recovery and
to be built.

The projected costs for the four of them I think is
somewhere in the neighborhood of $30 billion. The companies,
because the Legislature allowed early cost recovery for these
nuclear units, will start seeing increased costs as soon as
January 1lst of next year. I think as much as $11 or more for
Progress, I forget the number for FP&L, but there are many
hundreds of millions. Given that, we suggest to you that it
would make sense to have customers get credit for a low
emission source that they're already going to start paying for
in January. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Twomey. I
appreciate that.

Next we'll have Mr. -- and, again, as you, we're

going to continue back and forth, but I want to let everyone

get what they need to say up-front so we can move forward for

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

22

discussion and debate.
Next will be Mr. John McWhirter.
COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN CARTER: One second. Commissioner.
COMMISSIONER EDGAR: I was just going to say while
{[Mx . McWhirter is coming forward, could I make just a few

comments?

CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're recognized, Commissioner

Edgar.

I COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Thank you. And, and I wasn't
sure when the best time was, early, middle, and as we --
1 CHAIRMAN CARTER: No better time than the present.

ﬂYou're recognized.

1 COMMISSIONER EDGAR: Well, thank you -- as we work

through this. I do have, as I'm sure each of us do, some more
specific questions about some specific provisions that have

been suggested and some points to raise. And I'll kind of hold

on that thinking that when we get into more detail.

1 But I did want to follow up briefly on a few of the
Wcomments from Commissioner Argenziano and also from Mr. Twomey
wbecause they are similar to some of the thoughts that I've had
over the past weeks and months on this. I know I feel strongly
and we have all made statements about the need for this state

to work forward as an energy policy for energy security, for

Tfuel diversity, for job development, environmental quality,
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fair and affordable rates and reliability. I do think that our
"charge as economic regulators is to look at and help to ensure
that value to the customer, the value to the ratepayers for

what they are paying in their monthly bill, and we do that in

many, many ways and through many mechanisms.

I When I think about this issue, some of the issues
that came to my mind a few years back when we were looking at
“proposals on storm hardening, I think some of the analysis is
similar, which is we tried to gather all the data, listen to
all of the variety of stakeholders, which was vast, and then to
“look at what is the cost benefit, what is the value to making
additional investment and how do we review that. And so I
“think with some of the comments that Mr. Twomey has made and
lthat we have all made and will make again about the value to
the customers and also what the interrelationship and interplay
is for a strong RPS with the other things that we are doing as
a Commission in this state, and with the direction of the
llcovernor and the Legislature for additional energy efficiency
land energy conservation and investments there, a potential
future cap-and-trade, as we continue to review and evaluate
Ten-Year Site Plans and those processes, and I'm hoping as we

||
get into this a little bit more that there will be the
1
opportunity to expand on some of those ideas and ask a little

more specific questions.

But I think, again, how we put that together, value
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to the customers, value to the state, tracking those downstream
dollars so that there is oversight and accountability, and then
also moving forward this very important policy for fuel
diversity and for energy security with affordable rates and
reliability is, I mean, a challenge that is just so
fascinating, and I think today is going to be an important
piece of that discussion. So thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. And, again,

Commissioners, at any time if you need to say something, you

would be recognized for that.

With that, good morning, Mr. McWhirter.

MR. McWHIRTER: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and
Commissioners. I represent industrial and large commercial
customers, and in order to understand where I'm coming from,
"I'll give you the load characteristics of these kind of
customers.

First of all, by and large they operate around the
"clock and about 80 percent of their operation is during the off
peak periods. Secondly, they have -- as Mr. Lily (phonetic) in
the energy efficiency workshop which you've had going on
"correspondingly with this told about a number of things that
his company could do to improve energy efficiency, but there
are no credits available for that through the DSM clause or
"otherwise. The DOE has focused on industrial energy efficiency

as a good way to save energy. That has nothing to do with this
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rule you're considering today. And I think that may be one of
the problems with the rule because we don't coordinate the low

hanging fruit of energy efficiency with the philosophy of fuel

diversity.

—
p—

Second, the third characteristic of large industrial
llcustomers is that they can produce electricity as they
Ipresently do and they can sell that electricity and are
presently selling that electricity on an as-available power
basis to utilities at a cost less than the utilities pay for
the fuel that they use in their own generating plants. And
this rule, I'll talk about that in a minute, it may discourage

that kind of operation.

The second -- the fourth thing I would say about

|industrial customers is they are just like Mr. Twomey
llidentified them, they don't pay the electric bill. They either
pass that electric bill along to the members of AARP and other

residential consumers or they go out of business. It's just

——————————

|
jthat simple.

It's more characteristic, if you think in terms of a
grocery store, when you raise the electric rate for a grocery
store, which is a high load factor consumer because they have
Wrefrigeration that goes 24 hours a day, you immediately see,
"they are a low profit margin company and so you immediately see
it in customers' food bills. So anything that those customers

pay either goes through to the customers or, to their customers
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|[or they go out of business. And we saw that in Tampa when the
steel company closed down, the brewery closed down and moved to
Wareas where the electricity was cheaper, and that was a major
Wreason for it.
L Now having given you the characteristics of the
Windustrial customers I represent, I'd like to take a minute or
two and ask you or tell you how this rule affects those
consumers.

In the first instance, as Mr. Twomey and I think the
Public Counsel does, we oppose the idea of guaranteed cost
recovery clauses. When you have your hearings in November,
Lyou're going to find with the action you took today on the
Hnuclear cost pass-through and the -- you're going to find that
then you compare the 2007 operating revenues of the public

ﬁutilities to the sum of money that will be collected in the

Wnext year through the cost recovery clause, it's now in the
Hupper 70 percent of their gross revenue. So guaranteed cost
Hrecovery clauses bring in most of the money, and in your rule
Hyou've proposed a new guaranteed cost recovery clause. So
hwe're not too far away. We'll never get to 100 percent
Nguaranteed costs, but we're a long way from the concept that
Nthe utilities proffer that they only have an opportunity to
earn a return on their investment. They have a guarantee. So

we oppose all cost recovery and I'll deal with that later.

Collecting capacity costs through a kilowatt hour
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charge is harmful to industry and it's harmful to grocery
lstores and it's harmful to other high load factor customers
because they're paying for capacity that is used by other
people, and in some instances if they're interruptible
customers, is paying for capacity that they don't have any
entitlement to at all.

The third thing that gives me a little bit of concern
about Rule 410(10), it says that any customer that is receiving
the benefits of a DSM program from the Public Service
Commission shall not be entitled to a renewable energy credit.
I may be misinterpreting that, but I do know that all the
utilities in Florida have a DSM program for cogeneration. They
don't give any money to cogenerators other than the electricity
they buy from them at an economic price. What they do is the
employees' that monitor the program's salaries are paid through
that. If the fact that the utilities pay salaries to their
employees for a cogeneration DSM program would discourage or
would prohibit an industrial customer that can co-generate and
sell electricity from getting a renewable energy credit, I
lthink that would be horrible. I don't know that it does that,
but it gives me grave concern.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Are you close to winding up?

MR. McWHIRTER: Yes, sir. Yes, sir. 1I'd like to
reemphasize what Mr. Twomey said. I went to -- the Clerk of

the Circuit Court had a session for lawyers not long ago and
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she gave us a list of the foreclosures in Hillsborough County.
And they were going -- a year ago there were 1,900 new
foreclosures a month. This is in Hillsborough County alone.
In the last week in August of this year there were 3,000 new
foreclosures in Hillsborough County alone. If you read the

i
newspaper articles about the customers who are getting
discontinuance notices from utilities at the current rate, it
is very high.

Finally, I'd like to endorse two other things that
Mr. Twomey said. You've got the 75/25 percent; 75 percent
under this rule will go to solar and wind power, which is a
popular political thing. But I think we have a good model in
FP&L's recent case. It's going to spend $688 million to build
a solar array which has got to be state of the art, and that
solar array, they're going to charge 83 cents for every 1,000
kilowatt hours to support that. You pay -- you approve part of
lit today in your depreciation charge for that. But we've
gotten a number now. We've got 83 cents is what it costs a
utility to produce best technology solar power.

What about Mr. Twomey's reverse auction? When you
said let high technology people who can come in and sell us
electricity at less than 83 cents a kilowatt hour, let's start
lthe auction there. Anybody above that, you don't get in. But

if you can sell us power at less than that, we will take it and

we'll get diversification.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

29

q And I quit, Mr. Chairman. You can get rid of me.
CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you very kindly,

Mr. McWhirter.

And, again, as I said to you, those of you who have
been before us before, we want to hear from you, you know, but
you can state your issue succinctly. Because this process --
Iwe are, my colleagues and I are deferring to allow you to go
and say what you need to say, but we need to go through our
Ideliberations as well. And there's some of the issues that
you've raised we have questions about, but out of courtesy we
Iwanted to give you an opportunity to be heard first. So I
would -- my grandmama told me to always be nice in manners, so
WI don't want to give anyone kind of the death penalty or
anything like that. But let me juét give you a gentle reminder
Wthat five minutes is five minutes. Okay? Thank you so kindly.
| Let's do it this way. Next we'll call up Mr. Joe
McGlothlin from the Office of Public Counsel. And following
him, you can just go and sit behind him, following him,

Mr. McGlothlin, will be Mr. John Burnett from Progress Energy,

Carla Pettus and Eric Silagy from FPL, and Russell Badders and

Mr. McGee from Gulf Power, and Bill Ashburn from Tampa

l|[Electric. And also following that -- is that enough or should

I continue to go? Following Mr. Ashburn will be Michelle

Hershel from the cooperative association.

Mr. McGlothlin, you're recognized, sir.
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MR. McGLOTHLIN: Good morning. Joe McGlothlin with
the Office of Public Counsel. Usually I'm seated at the long
table posing questions to the occupant of this chair, so this
is, this is a bit of a novel experience.
| But I want to begin by echoing something that
Commissioner Argenziano said in her remarks. In our written
“comments following the workshops OPC commended the Commission

lstaff for the good work and hard work the staff performed in

what was a daunting task. We said then, we'll say now that the

—

Istaff approached that thoroughly and thoughtfully. And while I
may have some disagreements that I'm going to articulate this
Wmorning, I don't want to detract from their hard work on this,
Ton this project.

The -- to move forward with emphasis on renewable
sources of energy is a laudable goal. That goal would be
constrained by two primary factors. The first factor is the
amount of renewable energy that is technically available and
viable. The second factor will be the amount of money that
customers can afford to spend. With respect to the proposed
schedule for achieving the goal, OPC has not taken a hard and
fast position. 1It's our view that at this point the Commission
will be making a best efforts attempt to identify an
Lappropriate schedule acting on incomplete information.

L As you know, the consultant, Navigant, is supposed to

Wprovide a report, a technical assessment of the availability of
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|technically viable renewables in December. Also, as the draft

rule provides, the Commission anticipates revisiting this
schedule periodically; as it stands now in the draft rule,
"every five years. We think the Navigant report and this
opportunity to fine-tune going forward will play crucial roles

"
in establishing the ultimate time frame for implementing the

lIstatute.

However, with respect to implementing the schedule, I
want to point out that there is within the draft rule a
Wprovision that interferes with the objective of maximizing the
amount of cost-effective renewable capacity, and that is the
llcarve-out. Consider that within the rule you have these two

competing considerations. On the one hand the Commission says

in the rule we want to aggressively pursue the maximum amount
of renewable energy that our customers can afford, and at the
same time within the same document the Commission says we
require that the utility spend 75 percent of the money
available on 25 percent of the credits to be purchased. Those
Itwo objectives cannot co-exist in the document. And we contend
Ithat the carve-out should give way to the overriding
consideration that the Commission fashion a rule that requires

|the utility to give the customers the biggest bang for their,
for their bucks. And there are other reasons why the carve-out

|

should fail.

As Commissioner Argenziano commented, we are seeing
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technological breakthroughs in the area of the replaceable

"generating technologies, and I think it would be a mistake to

at this point identify a preference for one technology over the

other. 1Instead, let the marketplace and the innovations

available to those developing these renewables all compete to
be identified as the most cost-effective and best candidates

"for consideration.

With respect to the amount that customers can afford,
"others have alluded to the economic downturn, we're all
hfamiliar with that, but you don't have to go any farther than
the very things that are on your plate currently to recognize
that the customers are under considerable pressure. Recently

two of the large utilities came in for midcourse corrections to

their fuel cost recovery factors, and those corrections were so

large that you required them to recover them over two years
"instead of one, taking into account the need to temper the
impact on the customers' bill. They were that large.

Today you approved the recovery of nuclear cost
hrecovery matters. One utility asked for $400 million in the
year 2009. And, and as you are very aware, those nuclear
units, the cost of those nuclear units is not assured at this
Wpoint. We're in the early phases of finding out what the
ultimate price tag is going to be.

The utilities have made massive investments in

infrastructure necessary to conform to the requirements of the

|
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"Clean Air Interstate Rule. And it appears that even though
that rule, the status of the rule is in, in doubt, apparently

the utilities contend and there's reason to believe that

something very much like those requirements will continue to be
in force. So it is for that reason that we contend that the
Commission needs to be as careful with these renewable dollars
"as it is with the other factors.

Now with respect to the caps that have been proposed,
1 percent, 2 percent, 5 percent, it's my impression that at
times those caps are, are not described fully. As Mr. Twomey

pointed out, even at 1 percent the utilities would be

Iauthorized to spend, based on 2007 figures, $185 million. But
you need to bear in mind that that is not the total amount to
"be spent for renewable energy. That is a premium that is going
to be spent to recognize the renewable attributes of the
"generation. This is over and above the amount that the

generator will receive for capacity energy that they sell to

the utilities. And so it's a bit misleading to point to a cap

"of $185 million and by omission somehow communicate that this
is the whole amount that's being spent on renewable energy.

I It is also worth pointing out that this 1 percent cap
is to be applied to the entire revenue base of all the
"utilities. And then that assessment over the entire revenue

base is going to be funneled down and concentrated on a

relatively small portion of the total portfolio so it has a
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concentrated effect. So we're not, we're not talking about
|
small change when we say a 1 percent cap is $185 million when

|

you take into account this is over and above the price of

capacity and energy and it's going to be spent on a relatively

small number of kilowatt, of megawatt hours. And it is for

that reason that we contend that 1 percent is the appropriate

|
\ With respect -- I know I'm getting down to the last
W CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're over, way over.
I MR. McGLOTHLIN: May I make one more --

W CHAIRMAN CARTER: You may make one more point though,
WMr. McGlothlin.

MR. McGLOTHLIN: All right. In the strawman view, in

the strawman work product there was a second check on the

maximum price in the form of a, a cap that is the equivalent of

I, and I was disappointed to see that is no longer part of the

Lproduct.
L And in trying to communicate why I think this is an
Lappropriate element of the rule, I thought of an illustration

!$16 per ton of avoided greenhouse gases. That was deleted and
lthat comes from an unusual source but I think it makes the

point quite well. 1In his autobiography, Ulysses Grant, before
he turned to his recount of military campaigns, recalled an
incident that happened when he was an eight-year-old boy. His

I

1
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"father told him that he had permission to go to a neighbor and
try to buy a colt that Grant wanted. And so he came to the
"neighbor and said, "My father said I am to offer you $20 for
Lthe colt. And if you turn that down, I'm to offer you $22.50.
And if you don't take $22.50, I am to offer you $25." Well,

|consider that at least in the opening rounds of negotiations

for these renewable credits we have an immature market, an

imperfect and immature market, we have perhaps a relative few

players, and so until the market is truly competitive, there is

| the danger that at the outset those who know what the checkbook
is will fashion their proposals in a way that is designed to
[lget the maximum amount that the utilities have to spend. And
so for that reason, at least until the market is mature, I
“think there's a very real place for this sanity check, which is
the second cap on the maximum price of a, of a renewable
credit, and I commend that to you.

Finally, we do oppose in principle the additional
cost recovery clause. As the Commission is aware, when, when

the utility is required to recover new investments and new

“expenses through base rates, there's a very real possibility

that existing base rates may be adequate to absorb those

without an increase to the customer's bill. But when you, when
Iyou separate that out and say this is a standalone item and
there's going to be a cost recovery clause, that means that the

[l customers are going to be seeing this tacked on in a way that
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]
increases their bills and shifts the risk from the utility to

the customers at an increasing cost when that may not be
required. 2And with that, I know I'm over time, I appreciate

|
ryour indulgence.

|
CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Mr. McGlothlin. And I'm

guessing that he paid $25 for the coat.
" Okay. John Burnett.

MR. BURNETT: Thank you, sir, and good morning. It's
hard to follow General Grant, but I'll try and I'll keep it
“very brief.

Commissioners, thank you for the opportunity to speak
"with you. Briefly, the most important thing to our company and
to speak to the overall process is to support the development
of renewables in a method that's achievable, affordable and
Tequitable, and that seems to be everything, the common themes
that we're hearing today. And we think that's important and we

continue to look to those three principals as we go forward in

this process.

We appreciate the constructive dialogue that's taken
Iplace so far between all the stakeholders, and we specifically
wanted to commend the Commission for engaging in this task in a
lmethod that's been efficient, that's relied on empirical data
and that's been transparent to everyone. And we appreciate
that the Commission has looked at achievability, affordability

and equitable treatment of these issues. We remain committed
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to participating before this Commission and the Legislature,

and we thank you for the opportunity to present these comments

|
Wtoday.

L CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Burnett.

Ms. Pettus and Mr. Silagy.

MR. SILAGY: Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, thank
you for having me today. I am very pleased to be here, and to
reiterate that we are a strong supporter of the development of
1a well-designed and aggressive renewable energy portfolio. We
strongly support the Governor's initiative to attain a
|20 percent renewable energy standard by the year 2020, and we
believe there are a number of ways for the Commission and
Legislature to achieve these objectives.

We at FPL are fully committed to working with the
Commission to explore alternatives that will accomplish the
Governor's objectives, create environmental benefits and
minimize the cost impacts to our customers. We believe the
Commission and the Legislature should take a holistic approach

and develop the best strategy to accomplish the goals of

Ideveloping renewable resources, reducing greenhouse gas

emissions, increasing our nation's energy security and, again,
in a manner that would reduce the cost to our customers.

We believe that the inclusion of zero greenhouse gas
emitting, new nuclear and energy efficiency projects as well as

Wthe use of a nationwide renewable energy credit market or REC
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"market along with Florida renewable sources, renewable
resources, I should say, such as solar generation provide the
optimal path to achieving the development of new substantial
renewable resources here in Florida. Our approach, we believe,
WWill achieve enormous reductions in greenhouse gases and it

|will minimize the cost to the customers.

We also believe that new nuclear energy efficiency
I
and out-of-state RECs should play a role in achieving the
LIGovernor's objectives. We also believe the Legislature is

looking for these types of recommendations because they will

—

foster the development of renewable resources here in Florida,

|they will diversify our fuel sources, they will promote
Ieconomic development and reduce greenhouse gas emissions while

minimizing the costs.

W We recognize, of course, that the Legislature has not
included new nuclear and out-of-state RECs for the purpose of
che Commission's draft rule. Nonetheless, the process
established by the Legislature allows the Commission to weigh
in with its expertise on these proposals such as our clean
energy portfolio standard which includes components that are
outside the current statutory language.

We believe that under this process the Commission can
Land should weigh in on the merits of these proposals such as
Lours to accomplish the Governor's goals for renewable and clean

energy here in Florida.
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I We recommend that the Commission submit to the
Legislature in February along with its draft rule comments or a
“report addressing the merits of recommendation, recommendations
such as FPL's as well as recommendations by other stakeholders
that will further the development of renewable assets here in
||Florida, enhance the state's environment and again minimize the
cost to the customers.

W I'll wrap it up by reiterating our commitment to work
with the Commission and the Legislature in developing renewable
Tpolicy which accomplishes the Governor's objectives, brings new
renewable assets to the state and focuses on continued
Ireductions of greenhouse gases, preserves our emphasis on
"minimizing the cost impact to our customers. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you very kindly.
COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Could I ask a question?
CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano, you're
|recognized.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Just, just a quick
question. In your last statement in preserving the, you know,
"I guess the minimal cost to the consumer, if the Legislature
Wwere to include in the statutes, and, of course, it's not in
there now, that nuclear power was clean energy and that that
would be included, would you still have incentives to move

forward with solar and other renewables?

MR. SILAGY: Absolutely. In fact, we would have to,

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

40

"in order to meet, depending on what the ultimate standards are,
we would fully expect to have to build additional solar, wind
resources or other renewable energy. New nuclear wouldn't come
online for FPL until, the earliest would be 2018.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Okay. But what you said
was the most efficient. So if solar is not as efficient as
nuclear, what would your incentive be to continue solar?

I MR. SILAGY: No. When I say most efficient, what I'm
really getting to is the whole portfolio approach and utilizing
all the resources. That's the most efficient manner for us to
promote -- reduce greenhouse gases but also do it at the
minimum cost.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you.

MR. SILAGY: You're welcome.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you so kindly.

Next we'll hear from Mr. Badders and Mr. McGee. Gulf
llPower. Sorry.

MR. BADDERS: Good morning, Commissioners. My name
Iis Russell Badders and I appear on behalf of Gulf Power
Company. Gulf Power, Gulf Power strongly supports the
"development of cost-effective renewable energy generation in
Florida and we appreciate this opportunity to participate in

the process.

First, Gulf continues to believe that ultimately the

1] .
percentage RPS requirement must be based on a valid resource
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n
assessment using realistic assumptions for both future

|renewable generation potential and costs here in Florida.
Otherwise, goals will not be attainable, costs to customers
Iwill be excessive and an RPS will not succeed.

When setting achievable goals, Gulf encourages all

stakeholders to carefully consider the real potential for

renewables in the state as well as the higher cost of those
generation sources. In addition, if we do as was discussed

|| ) . . .
earlier, we set a more aggressive goal timetable for reaching

ﬂthe 20 percent goal that is already in the rule, we would
suggest that the utilities be given additional flexibility to
Wmeet these aggressive goals by removing some of the interim
Wsteps.

Second, Gulf supports the inclusion of the renewable
Wenergy cost recovery clause in the draft rule. The Florida
"Legislature recognized the importance of such a clause when it

wprovided specific authority for cost recovery in Section
I

1
Wenergy cost recovery clause, one, facilitates tracking the RPS

366.92.

In addition, Gulf agrees with staff that a renewable

compliance costs; two, would provide a form for addressing RPS

| : o
Wrelated issues; and, three, would facilitate the development of

Wutility self-built renewable projects.

I Gulf does however have one suggestion in that rule as

W FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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hwhether or not the separately set ROE would be separate to each

project or to the RECR clause overall. Our suggestion here is

——
p—

Lto just follow the model that staff seemed to follow for the
ﬂrest of the clause and follow what is done in the ECRC, which
would be to take the utility's last authorized return rather
than going through that process for each project.

“ My next comment relates to the 25 percent solar and
Wwind carve-out or set-aside. We fully agree with AARP and the
"Office of Public Counsel. We believe that a carve-out or a
Tset—aside, regardless of the level, would be an impediment to

the most, or could be an impediment to the most cost-effective

mix of renewables. The more of the goal that is left open to

have a cost-effective mix of renewable resources.

'1
competition, we think the better the chances are that we'll

Fourth, moving to the penalty mechanism that's

Walready in the draft rule, Gulf believes that any penalty

mechanism incorporated into the rule should be symmetrical with

an opportunity for both a reward and a penalty. Gulf suggests

—————————————————————————

Wthat this can be accomplished fairly easily by modifying

Wstaff's concept of 50 points, basis points penalty and

Wsplitting it into a 25 point potential reward or 25 point

potential penalty.
The Commission actually has experience with this type

|

of an approach with a symmetrical approach. If we look to the
HGPIF or the generation performance incentive factor in the fuel

h FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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docket, it is pretty much the same way. It's a 25 basis point

reward or penalty. And this, excuse me, this penalty or reward

Isystem has proven to be fairly effective in that clause.
Finally, Gulf believes it is of critical importance
to the interests of its customers that the rule contain a

mechanism to control costs. I'll not go into the discussion

Ithat we've heard already from Public Counsel and AARP, but we
!fully support their position on the 1 percent cost cap.

I CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano.
COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. I guess I

should have asked this of everybody, and I'm going to, going to

do that with everybody coming up. What is -- you opened up

with saying that you support the most cost-effective

| renewables. What in Gulf's opinion now are the most
hcost—effective renewables?

w MR. BADDERS: Well, right now I don't know that we
“all have the best information to know what is the most
cost-effective. I know we're waiting to see more information

from the Navigant study. We really need to probably wait and

—

Wsee what develops to see where solar, where wind, where biomass

and some of these others fall out as far as costs. What do you

——

get for each dollar that you spend, how many megawatt hours do

|

Il COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: So if -- and they're not at

1you get with your investment?

this point, I guess, but if the solar and wind were the most
I
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cost-effective five years down the road, so then you would

support those or other things like that?

S—

1 MR. BADDERS: Sure. Right. I believe, I mean, as
the rule is set up, I mean, we'd have to put out an RFP and you

test the market, you see where everything kind of falls out as

|far as costs. And clearly if solar or wind or any other
technology came in as the most cost-effective, that would be

that we would try to pursue.

"
COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: But as of right now Gulf is

WHOt recommending any particular cost-effective renewable or do
you have any in mind?

w MR. BADDERS: I mean, really I think you have to look
Wat it more on a project basis. I mean, in some instances you
wmay find that a particular wind or solar project may end up

being from a cost basis better than maybe a biomass or

—

1something else. I think you need to be able to look at it --

|
1 COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: And --

W MR. BADDERS: I'm sorry.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: No. Go ahead. I'm sorry.
H MR. BADDERS: I think you have to look at it more on
a project basis rather than a technology basis when you really
ngt down and do the analysis.

H COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Okay. And just one other
"question. With regard to the penalty and reward, as you said

making it symmetrical, wouldn't the RECs be considered a

H FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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reward?

w MR. BADDERS: Well, it depends. If you're purchasing
“the RECs, I mean, you're, basically you're paying for it. So

I'm not really sure that would be the reward. Now if you do a
“self—build, those would go through the clause also. So I don't

really think there's a, I guess, incentive or reward to the

utility for that. That goes back to the customer.

w COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Okay. So then you're
"saying that it is asymmetrical now as in the, as in the curreﬁt
lrecommendation as far as just a penalty and not a reward?

MR. BADDERS: Yes, Commissioner. Currently it's
ﬂdrafted as a 50 point penalty potential up to. And I'm just

Wtrying to suggest that we have experience in another docket, a

docket that has a lot of costs in it obviously, the fuel

|docket, and it uses a 25 and a 25 penalty and reward system and

it seems to work fairly well. So we're just asking maybe to,

|
ﬂto look at that, maybe include that rather than just a penalty.
NI think in the past the Commissioners looked at a penalty or an

|
kincentive as both a reward or a penalty. I think you get more

with that than just a penalty.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Okay. And, Mr. Chairman,

Wat the appropriate time if staff can address that particular
Wpart, I'd appreciate it.

H CHAIRMAN CARTER: Staff is ready.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Okay. Go for it, Bob.

“ FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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MR. TRAPP: Ready any time you are.
| COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. Yes.
CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Badders.
MR. TRAPP: Let me just say that the basis for
staff's recommendation for the separate authorization for
return was to reflect some of the unique aspects of this

particular rulemaking proposal.

|
First, I would note that your question was I think
"right on point with respect to the incentive associated with
lIRECs. But if you think of it in terms of the utility's
self-build option is going to most likely reflect a cost higher
“than what the utility would otherwise pay for generation in
lorder to attain renewable attributes, the company will then

earn an extra component of return on that extra amount that

Wthey had to spend to get those attributes. That to me is an

ﬂincentive.

w The 25/25 split is something certainly that staff is
willing to look at, the Commission perhaps should look at. But
I would like to mention that the program that that is tied to,
the generating performance incentive factor, the 25 basis
points is used as a cap, but the measure on how much reward or
Wpenalty you get is based on actual fuel savings, savings, not
increased cost. So there's a little bit of a disconnect with

respect to the philosophy used in the GPIF and the philosophy

being used here.
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We tend to agree with the idea that a separate clause
was being proposed because it does consolidate all the
renewable costs in one area where the Commission can review
them in one place and take into consideration the special
unique attributes associated with renewable power, and also the
fact that it's being recovered through a clause and the
Commission in my opinion should take into account the reduced
risk associated with recovering those dollars and setting that
return on equity. And those are the points that staff would

make.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I appreciate that. Thank
you.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you.

And from TECO, Mr. Bill Ashburn.

MR. ASHBURN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and
Commissioners. Unlike Mr. McGlothlin, I am used to sitting
over here.

Tampa Electric commends the Florida Public Service
Commission staff for its efforts to comply with the renewable
portfolio standard provisions included in HB 7135 and
appreciates this opportunity to speak at today's Agenda

Conference on this important issue.

The workshops held by the PSC and the RPS strawman
developed by the staff in this matter have been helpful and the

proposed rule presents a significant and thoughtful approach in
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developing the ultimate program. Tampa Electric believes the
WPSC must actively pursue the RPS through strategies that
recognize the interrelated nature of environmental, economic
and energy policy. Effective renewable energy policy can only
Wbe achieved if each of these priorities are properly balanced.
Tampa Electric appreciates and supports the
HLegislature's and the Commission's efforts to encourage

1

renewable energy, and we look forward to working within an RPS

—

that recognizes the full potential of Florida renewable energy

resources to be identified by the Navigant study.

We have two specific issues we wanted to bring up
Wtoday. Tampa, Tampa Electric believes the evaluation of the
availability and the cost of renewable energy is inextricably
linked with the affordability provisions in HB 7135, and that's
been brought up today, and is a vital part of balancing the
Legislature's clearly expressed objectives of promoting the
development of renewable energy while minimizing the cost of

Wpower to the utility and its customers.

W The Navigant study is essential in ensuring the RPS
targets are technically and economically achievable. It's
imperative that the study is completed and vetted before the

ﬂconsideration of the final draft rule to be sent to the

ﬂLegislature.

Another element we wanted to bring up in the draft

Hrule is the renewable energy credit market structure is an

L FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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essential element of the development of the RPS and it must be
developed in a thoughtful and deliberate manner. Tampa
Electric is a little concerned that there's not adequate time
provided for in the draft rule to issue and conduct an RFP,
select a winning proposal, establish an organization or
contract with an independent corporation for the development,
administration and maintenance of the REC market, particularly
given the need for involvement of all the affected persons, and
there's a lot of them as you can see here, in such a process.
So we're a little concerned about the timing that's in the, in
the draft rule. With that, I'd be happy to answer any
questions.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. Same question.
Has TECO looked at what they perceive in the future to get
where the state is obviously heading what could be

Wcost—effective and, as you mentioned that, you mentioned 7135

and the costs being minimal or being cost-effective to the
utility as well as the customer?

Have you looked at anything as you -- is there
anything that the company can share with this Commission as far
as numbers or definites or anything that looks possible as far

as the most cost-effective approach to moving where we need to

move?

MR. ASHBURN: We certainly have been involved in

1 FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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| . :
testing the market. We've had an RFP out and we're talking to
people who are making us offers to sell renewable energy.

|We've been looking ourselves at what kind of development to

make. We look forward to the Navigant study, as was mentioned
by Gulf, as being an important element of that.

| I think it's important to understand too that some of
these renewable suppliers are a little bit geographically
dependent as well. An example would be Mr. McWhirter was
lltalking about, say, some of the interruptible customers, the
phosphate companies who are included in their renewable group,
“they're located in a specific area. So we have a lot of
experience with them in producing power for us and so that
certainly is a very cost-effective option in our area. Whereas
the -—- we're on the Gulf Coast. There may not be so much tidal
action or current action for oceans. So, I mean, it just
depends where you are on what kind of geography and what kind
of renewables may be available. We are not necessarily in an
“area where there's a lot of forestry, so it may not be a place

|where we can get a lot of woody biomass. It may be better for

crops. 1 don't know.

1]
But the point is the study is looking at the state as

la whole and each utility is looking at its own region, its own
footprint as a whole, and each footprint of the utilities is
1]

slightly different. So we may have different answers to that

question depending on development.
H
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COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: It seems, Mr. Chairman,
that the answers are not, not there right now in many
instances. But in 7135 there's kind of a couple of things
going on. There is an emphasis on reducing emissions, which
the Governor and I think many people agree with must take
"place. But there's also -- when you talk biomass and other
things, even though some people argue that biomass is emission
neutral or whatever, and it could be, but when it comes to the
"reducing emissions -- and I guess I'm trying to get from some
of the companies, I'm trying to get some of the areas you might
be going into that reach the -- the heavier weight on 7135 to
"me was reducing emissions, and cost, of course, is in there,

and some of the others, other renewables may not be so

aggressive in reducing emissions. Are you looking into those

renewables also with the study being done that are, how do you
say it, that are, you know, looking into the emissions as well?
" MR. ASHBURN: Certainly. Certainly. And I think the
“other element of 7135 that's a big element to come is the
cap-and-trade and so forth that we're all facing. So we're
looking not only at developing new plant that would have less
“emissions, we're also looking at our existing plant and how we
can, what can we do with that plant to reduce the amount of
"emissions coming out. Because from the cap-and-trade

standpoint whether it -- it's just pure emissions is what's

"going to be paid for through some sort of cap-and-trade regime.
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LISo we're also looking at our existing plants and how much

—

Wemissions they're doing and what we can do to reduce those.

| COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you.

W CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you. Thank you. Thank you.
WJust as Michelle gets ready to go -- Michelle, hang on one

second -- but as Michelle is getting ready, let me kind of give

—————

you the batting order. Following Michelle would be Suzanne
Brownless, following Suzanne would be Joe Treschler, then Sean
Stafford, then Jon Moyle, then Eric Draper, and batting cleanup
Lwill be Leon Jacobs. And I'll kind of give you a little
Ireminder just in case you missed the order.

w Michelle, how are you?

W MS. HERSHEL: I'm fine. How are you?

L CHAIRMAN CARTER: You're recognized.

| MS. HERSHEL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners.

lI'm Michelle Hershel. I'm with the Florida Electric

Cooperatives Association. And I've just got a minor suggestion

on proposed Rule 25-17.420.

As you know, many of our distribution cooperatives
are members and get power from their G&T cooperative, and I
believe it's the same situation for the municipals and FMPA.
WAnd we thought that it would be better served to have our G&T
Wprovide the Commission with a report on the information since

it's readily available to the G&T and not to the distribution

co-ops. We would ask for that, that change be made to the

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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proposed rule.
H CHAIRMAN CARTER: Mr. Trapp.

W MR. TRAPP: I, I would really have to defer to our

legal people to look at our jurisdiction over the G&Ts relative

to our jurisdiction over the individual systems and make sure

wthat there was enough grab there.

|

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay.

MR. TRAPP: We've had a similar problem with the

— — — —

Ten-Year Site Plans from different people and different
“authorities that we have. And we don't have jurisdiction over
“the Florida Reliability Coordinating Council as such but their
!members we do have jurisdiction over, and we have cooperated to
get an aggregate for the State of Florida from FRCC by

|
Wrequiring it from the individual members. And I think
something like that could be probably worked out, but we'd be
Whappy to work, work that problem out.

W CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay. Michelle, maybe you and our
“friends in the co-op association can assist us as we ask them
Tif they would, you know, supply staff with that necessary
jinformation. Commissioners? Cindy, you had a comment? You're
recognized.

w MR. MILLER: And we'll be glad to take a look at
wthat. The statute, I think, refers to each municipal electric
utility, so we'll, we'll need to take a look and see if that
will fit within it.

I

1
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MS. HERSHEL: Okay.

i CHAIRMAN CARTER: And we do, we do want to let you
know, Michelle, that we appreciate the cooperation and the
Iassistance with the cooperative associations, and we want as
much as possible to continue that, foster that dialogue and get

whatever information that we can to make this -- I think

Commissioner Argenziano kind of set the tone is that we, and

Commissioner Edgar, is that we, one, we're open for business

for renewables, and but we're doing it in a, in a responsible

and economical and efficient manner. So we thank you for that
|and we ask that you will continue to be with us in the process.
So as those that we may not have necessarily jurisdictional
ﬂauthority over, but your colleagues could, certainly could

provide that information to us. Thank you.

MS. HERSHEL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

—

w CHAIRMAN CARTER: All right.
1 Ms. Brownless.

I MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you. First I want to thank the
Commission for the opportunity for the Florida Solar Coalition
ﬂto speak with you, and we are very appreciative of the staff's

Wefforts in this area. This is by no means a simple equation.

|

Iinsufficient. Meeting a 5 percent goal by 2017 when the

I want to start out by saying first of all that we

S— ——————————————

believe the RPS goals proposed in the staff's new rule are

staff's own report indicates that 3.6 percent of retail sales

w FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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|
are currently being provided by renewable energy appears to be
ﬂno goal at all, to be honest with you. So we are strongly

Wsupportive of a 20 percent by 2020 goal. We would like to urge

ﬂthat a goal be set by 2010, which was the staff's original

“strawman proposal.

We have submitted a study by Crossborder Energy to
the PSC, and that's in the record available to the PSC, which
indicates that our goal of 20 percent by 2020 would result in a
3.4 percent increase in IOU revenues using a l5-year renewable
Wenergy contract. And basically our goals would be 2010,

WZ percent, 2015, 10 percent and 2020, 20 percent. And as I

Tsay, given the fact that already 3.6 percent of the renewable

energy is out there, we believe those to be doable and

efficient and cost-effective manageable goals.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Excuse me, Ms. Brownless. This
won't be taken off your time. Could you back up for a second?
You gave those percentages. 2 percent by -- can you give me
those again, please?

MS. BROWNLESS: 2 percent by 2010.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay.

MS. BROWNLESS: Which obviously would be met if
there's 3.6 percent currently.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Okay.

Il MS. BROWNLESS: 2015, 10 percent and 2020,

|20 percent. However, if the Commission takes the position that
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no goal should be set until 2017, then we believe it's inherent
upon the Commission in order to encourage third party renewable
generation, which is part and parcel of what this rule is also
supposed to be doing, to set a price for RECs, a cents per
Hkilowatt hour price. I know Mr. Twomey indicated to you or I

believe Mr. McWhirter that FP&L's price was 83 cents a kilowatt

hour. What we're talking about is something substantially less
than that that would be sufficient incentive for third parties
to develop renewables. And we would provide the exact cents

per kilowatt hour charge in our comments on December 3rd at the

rule hearing. But I can tell you it would be somewhere in the
neighborhood of 22 cents per kWh, so it's significantly less
than FP&L's number.

We think it important that third party construction
of renewables be encouraged as well as investor-owned
utilities. And as the staff's proposed rule is now with the,
%with the separate incentive clause in which an IOU can put its
cost of construction, fixed O&M, and I'm not sure about
variable O&M but I believe so, and the price of the REC passing
through the clause, that's an, that's an automatic incentive

because that's automatic cost recovery.

H I have been doing this long enough to when I started

the only thing that came through a cost recovery clause was

fuel, and that was a direct result of the Arab oil embargo

crisis in 1974. As Mr. McWhirter pointed out, now 70 percent
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of a utility's revenues are being generated through cost
recovery clauses. You are moving more and more away from the
rate base cost of recovery model for regulation. I don't
necessarily perceive that as a good thing because you're moving
more and more away from any opportunity at one point in time to
look at the entire picture for an investor-owned utility. So I
llthink that that is a bad thing.

And what I would suggest is that you do this, is that
1]
for investor-owned utilities you rate base their renewable
projects, they be treated like any other project, and that you
recover the cost as originally proposed by staff of the RECs
generated by that IOU project through a cost recovery clause.
That limits the scope of the cost recovery clause and it
encourages the development of third party renewable sources.
Because what you're seeking is a balance between IOU
lconstructed facilities and third party constructed facilities.
|[If you don't have the third party constructed facilities, I do
not think you appropriately encourage a green industry in
Florida. You don't appropriately incent the small
Wbusinesspeople who are out there now building solar hot water
||[heaters, pool applications, the types of solar applications

that are the low hanging fruit, the easiest to implement and in

—

fact are being implemented now. So you want an incentive for

| . .
the larger photovoltaic projects.

We do agree with the 25 percent set-aside and the

| FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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75 percent money cap because that recognizes the fact that
|there are, there is an increased price for certain technologies
in the market today. We believe that that price will come
down. I think that's been borne out if you look at what's
happened in Germany, if you look at what's happened in Europe.

|aAnd if you set a price for the REC contract, then, of course,

the REC contract price should decrease over time as well

because you're starting a market and the incentive should

decrease.

I do want to take a minute to say that the staff has
"indicated and several people have commented that you need the
Navigant study. We absolutely agree with that. We only have
one problem with the Navigant study, and for us it's a very
“significant issue. While your staff has included solar hot
water in, in its definition of the technologies available for
the RPS goal, Navigant has excluded all of those technologies
except greater than 2 megawatts and also except greater than
those that can be mounted on a roof.

Now in thinking about who that would be that would be
llincluded in the Navigant study, other than Disney World or
something where you have a large, a large facility that's using
that, a significant amount of electricity, there's not very
many people that are going to use more than 2 megawatts of

solar thermal capacity. You are excluding everybody in the

residential area. And I appreciate that there is some thought
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that they can be picked up in the demand-side management
programs in the conservation goal docket that's coming before
you next fall, but the point is that they should be picked up
here as well. So I would request respectfully that the
Navigant folks be instructed to include them in their study.

Finally, I want to follow up briefly --

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Ever so briefly.

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes, sir -- on the comments made by
Commissioner Argenziano, which I greatly appreciate, as to
exactly the unique nature of what you're doing here. This is a
draft rule. This is not the normal course of events where
legislative authority is delegated to an agency. You are also
the only legislative agency in the State of Florida. You share
a distinctly unique posture. So with respect to Commissioner
Argenziano, I believe in this instance what you have been asked
to do is apply your uniquely specific legislative mandate.

What did the Legislature create you for? The Legislature
originally created you to give thought to the policies, thought
to the policies. So I don't think it is inappropriate for you
to, to pursue Commissioner Argenziano's ideas with regard to a
range of options. I think that is exactly appropriate.

Because in, in part what they've done is asked you for your
opinion as to what the policy should be based upon the data and
the expertise that you have. 2And so I would urge you to give

them options not that you think can pass the next legislative
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session but options that you think should pass the next

legislative session. Thank you.

w CHAIRMAN CARTER: Yield for a moment, Ms. Brownless.

Commissioner Argenziano.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

1 A couple of things. The question about why you think
we were created is a far lengthier answer that I'll probably
give you at another time. And as far as us being a

legislative -- we are a creature of the Legislature. We work
for the Legislature. They are the policymakers, the only
policymakers. They do not want us to make policy. Trust me.

I was a legislator and I can tell you that is a fact. So what
they send down to us -- and one of the things you object to I
guess was the moving more and more away from the rate base
recovery. That's the legislative policy that's been mandated
lto the Public Service Commission. So it's not our decision.
And when we give them our opinion, they say that's nice and we
want to know your opinions about things we mandate, but don't
create policy. So I want you to make no mistake that while we
can give them opinions on what they ask us to do, they are the
policymakers. So we have our hands tied even if we personally
agree that, you know, something should be a different way, then
we have to become legislators in order to get that policy moved

forward.

H And I understand that, you know, within our capacity

H
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we can give opinions and they're asking for that in the rule,

this is what we want to do. But also in the legislative

process for rulemaking there are criteria that we have to meet,
and the criteria is that we develop a product that is
Lsufficiently developed, I guess, to then go on and move to
ratification. Now if you don't get specifics from the
Legislature, here's a general idea of what we want to do but we
don't have specifics to it, then we can't develop, to me,
sufficiently develop a rule to send to them without saying,
okay, we need more specifics from you. You know, when you say
give weight to solar or renewables and so on, are you including
also the rates and the costs and so on to that?

So part of -- and I guess the other part of the

question that I do have for you is in, in your support of the

HZS percent carve-out, do you take into consideration the rates?
MS. BROWNLESS: Yes, ma'am.

A COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: And I heard you say that

they come down eventually, but --

MS. BROWNLESS: We did provide a study to you, the
Crossborder Energy study, that in fact takes our proposed RPS
goals and tells you exactly what the rate impact is for those
goals.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: I know. Do you consider

Athose the most cost-effective? Because that's what Senators

and legislators are asking me.
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MS. BROWNLESS: I do consider those to be
cost-effective.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Not asking me, asking us to
ldo as a, as a body.

MS. BROWNLESS: For exactly the reason that you gave
with regard to the example of we started out this process in
the '70s. And what did we do with it? Absolutely nothing.

And we didn't do anything with it because the emergency was
over, the price of gas and oil derivatives and natural gas fell

and everybody said, oh, great.

Il COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Right. And I said that at
Ithe beginning it was great, and I blame our leaders at that
time for not moving -- wishy-washy is the word I used. So we
I

have things on the table now that we're looking at, but we're

Walso instructed and we, as the Public Service Commission, have

lto look at rates.
|

'W
understands that is this going to cost more than traditional

MS. BROWNLESS: And I think you should look at rates.

But my point is this, I think it's clear that everybody

I

generation? Yes. Just like nuclear power initially is, the
capital cost of nuclear power is a significant issue. That's
|
pwhy the investor-owned utilities came in here and said, oh, by
|

the way, this is such a significant issue that we have to have

a separate cost recovery clause for it.

This isn't going to be inexpensive, but the broader

|
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“policy goal can only be met by having more renewable energy.

|

1have not pursued that for a raft of reasons that we could

And based upon historical factors it is clear that the

investor-owned utilities in the past left to their own devices

“discuss at length otherwise.

| COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Right. And I'm not arguing

that and there are, we need to have incentives and we were told
there needs to be incentives to move towards renewables and I
don't think you're hearing an argument there.

Just one other question. You referred to Germany and
I tried to look at Germany as an example about their costs

coming down. I've seen the opposite. Can you help me, maybe

Weither provide something to Larry or my staff?
fl MS. BROWNLESS: Sure.

w COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Because I've looked at

WGermany and I found that I think -- Larry, am I right -- 55
cents per kilowatt? And that's, that's kind of a shock.

MS. BROWNLESS: 1It's 55 cents per kilowatt in
Germany, a state that has much less solar capacity than here.
But if you look at the entire legislative package for Germany,
and I think we have provided an English translation of that to

your staff, then what you see is that the cents per kilowatt

has rapidly decreased, it's on the decline. It is not on the
Wascendancy. And so as the incentives have kicked in, more
Wplayers, more market competition has come in and the technology

|
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has developed, the price has gone down.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Okay. You have sent that
to my staff already?

MS. BROWNLESS: I have sent that to someone on the
PSC staff. But, Commissioner, I'll make sure you get it.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. I appreciate
it. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Thank you so kindly. Thank you,
Ms. Brownless.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Mr. Chair.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: One second.

Commissioner Skop.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning, Ms. Brownless.

MS. BROWNLESS: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: I'd be also interested in seeing
that study --

MS. BROWNLESS: Sure.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: -- in detail. I mean, I'm
familiar with renewables, familiar with the technology,
familiar somewhat with what's going on in Germany and the UK
and Europe.

I guess my concern is, is the assertion that the
|costs are coming down. I haven't seen that. I've recently

|seen some data from the largest array in Florida that causes me
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to, to doubt some of the, the values that are, that are being

—
m—

offered in terms of the cost-effectiveness. And so I'd be

—

Linterested in seeing any data that you have that would

independently substantiate that position. Because, again, I've

done some additional analysis which I'll get to later in the

Idiscussion today, but I just can't -- for whatever reason, the
economics are, are what they are and I'm just not seeing that,
that decreasing cost scale. I'm seeing a very significantly
expensive cost driver for solar technologies. And I wish it
was different, but, again, I can't reasonably convince myself
in light of what I've seen that the costs are not substantial.

1 MS. BROWNLESS: I think it depends on the study you

Hlook at. Obviously there's different types of solar

|technology; there's thermal, photovoltaic, I mean, there's

concentrating, there's a whole, a whole range.

What we are advocating is the structure that's been
proposed here because of the legislative mandate, and I
appreciate that, is that there would be a renewable energy
market, a REC market that was a competitive free market system.
We don't have a problem with that. But what we are saying is
that as an alternative to that one can have a set price that
decreases over time with the original price recovering a
wreasonable return. It is the equivalent, if you will, of
allowing the investor-owned utilities to put their construction

Hcosts, their 0O&M costs into an accelerated cost recovery
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clause. What we are looking for is parity between

investor-owned utility self-build options and third party

Hoptions.

COMMISSIONER SKOP: And just, just to follow up on

————

that. Again, I'm familiar with New Jersey and California. But

ﬂNew Jersey, the REC rate or the maximum cap for REC rate is

approximately $711 per megawatt hour, that's one REC, and at

——
me——

least that's based on me speaking directly to the coordinator
“in New Jersey. So, again, in relation to, again, things I've
Tseen recently, the costs seem to be what they are. I mean, I
wish I could do the "I Dream of Jeannie" and nod my head and
Lmake the costs go down, and maybe that will happen in time with
Wadvances in technology. But, you know, I just would be
interested in seeing the additional studies that you'd like to
proffef. I think it would be informative to making a
wwell—reasoned decision on my part.

L But I do see a substantial cost driver for
Hparticularly the, the solar technologies including solar
ﬂthermal and solar PV. I'm not against them, but, I mean, I
ﬂhave to be equally cognizant of the cost as well as the net

1

capacity factors. So, again, I think the data that you can

“share with me would be very helpful.

H MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you so much.

H CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Argenziano.

h COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you. And just one

|
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more thing. If you have any information, I've got some
information, and anybody out there who may have the
information. Because as, as solar could be, could be more
expensive right now, her point is well taken. The cost of
building a nuclear plant has risen quite a bit also. But there
are, as I mentioned earlier, we're right on the cusp of a lot
of, of breakthroughs in solar with greater efficiencies that
are not here yet but they're right there. So at the same time
you can't close the door because they could wind up being an
incredible asset to all of us in the future and I don't want to
see us closing the door. And if you close that door even
halfway, you may shut down that incentive to move forward like
we could have if we started in '72, and I don't want to do that
either.

But there is something, and you may be able to help
me or someone else may, I need more information on the, on the
Hbreakthroughs with some of those new solar panels as far as
gathering more light from the sun. And I think at one area,
Wone lab came through a 47.7 percent efficiency rate. And I

know that sounds very high but I know I read it and saw it

somewhere. And if you have any information, I'd love to have
that 

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you, ma'am.

COMMISSIONER ARGENZIANO: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Commissioner Skop.
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H COMMISSIONER SKOP: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And to
“Commissioner Argenziano's point, which I think is a, is a very
good one, I think that there are some emerging technologies
%which would significantly, if proven commercially viable, would
significantly reduce the deployment costs of solar. One of
those is a very thin film solar which actually, I think there's
a, there's a company, the name eludes me, but I believe it's on
the west coast and they're actually using something analogous
to a laser-jet process to deposit the film. And it's almost
like running something through a printing press and you get a
Hsolar panel at the end. So certainly if that technology proves
Lviable, that would be one of those quantum leaps where you
would expect to see huge economies of scale in cost reductions.

And hopefully those with the proper incentives and support,

—

again, being cognizant of costs, will nurture and develop those

technologies in a short time frame.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Of course I run the risk of saying

|
|
|
|

—

something I probably shouldn't say, but on a visit to one of
“our military installations I saw some of the emerging
Htechnologies as Commissioner Skop is mentioning in terms of
Hsolar because a lot of times when they go to different places
they have to take everything with them, and it would be

interesting to see if some of that is moved over to the

civilian side of the house in terms of R&D and applications and

—

Wall. And that's an exciting time for us, but that's all I'll

W
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say about that.

Thank you so kindly, Ms. Brownless.

MS. BROWNLESS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN CARTER: Joe Treschler.

MR. TRESCHLER: Good afternoon, Commissioners. My
name is Joe Treschler. I work for Covanta Energy and have
represented my company in the Tampa Bay area for over 20 years,

and I appreciate your time today and the ability to comment.

ﬂ Just taking a moment just to remind you who Covanta

Energy is and what we do, we operate energy from waste
facilities, facilities that take what's left over after a
community's recycling program and take that material, use it as
fuel, generate renewable energy in the form of steam or
electricity. We operate four of Florida's 11 energy from waste
facilities.

Basically I hope you take three things away from my
comments today: That energy from waste can and should
significantly contribute to Florida's renewable energy going
forward. That the PSC rule as it's written right now, we don't
see that it supports renewable energy generation. In fact, we
think it inhibits it dramatically. And, three, a restructuring
of the avoided cost calculations would be a significant step in

creating a true competitive and job creating market for

renewable energies.

% Right now in Florida the 11 facilities that are in
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operation generate about 517 megawatts, and what we reported to
staff as potential in the future could be as much as an
additional 1,600 more. But the problem comes down to is do we
really have a competitive marketplace for independent power
production under the rule as proposed? And I was glad to see
that Commissioner Argenziano was open to the idea of rethinking
or relooking at the rule and providing alternatives. Because
right now we see that the rule is leaving what we see as the
low hanging fruit, the biomass, not just the waste but the
biomass, on the tree. Okay? There's no incentive for

| independent power producers like ourselves, Florida Crystal in

Ithe counties we serve. And it places, the rule right now

places the control and responsibility and the incentives that
Wexist in the hands of the investor-owned utilities.

Staff in the workshops has given us the impression
Ithat avoided cost concept will remain the law of the land.
WThis has stopped independent power development of renewable
Wenergy in the state since the early '90s, except for the recent
expansions in Lee County and Hillsborough County of their
energy from waste facilities. And those were made basically
purely on environmental reasons, not because they were going to
Wget fair payment for their electricity.

1 I'd like just to discuss the avoided cost issue

problem as we see it, which we thought went away in the

Wlegislation last year but we don't think it has. The challenge

|
|
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is that under the current rules the avoided cost rate offered
for new capacity is very low. Despite what everybody tells
you, currently in negotiations it's about six to seven cents
per kilowatt hour. That does not get a project done or move it
forward.

Prior to 1991, the last time our industry was able to
create a new greenfield energy from waste facility, the
lcalculation of avoided cost took into consideration the capital
investment the project owner or developer was making in that

baseload type facility and included the capacity payment that

|reflected that investment for a baseload type facility. After
|'91 the calculation was changed allowing the investor-owned
utilities to consider the capital investment the utility would
“make in a peaking power unit that had a much lower capital cost
and a much higher fuel cost. Hence, the capacity payment
offered to communities for their baseload type facility became
much less and they were allowed to go away with paying an
energy and a low capacity payment. That leaves the fuel risk.
If a new renewable, renewable energy project doesn't go forward
Tand that option is a gas turbine or such gets built, which is
Hlow in capital (phonetic), leaves the fuel risk in the
consumer's hand because it's a pass-through. So it's not
helping the situation.

Communities in fact like Hillsborough County and the

"City of Tampa, two governments that committed to renewable
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energy early on, are currently negotiating renewal of their
existing power purchase agreements from the 1980s. And
“unbelievably they are being offered less for the renewable
energy going forward than they're currently receiving under
their old contracts that expire in 2011.

Here's why it's important to all of us, Covanta and
"all and everyone else, in an industry, in our industry we think
llcompetition is good. We compete though against not only other
energy from was<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>